Minutes of the Seasonal Communities Advisory Council Meeting
Date: November 19, 2025
9:30 AM – 10:30 AM
Note: Attendance for the 11/19/25 Seasonal Communities Advisory Council meeting is entirely virtual.
	Members Present
Secretary Ed Augustus
Peter Lombardi
Megan Trudel
James Anthony
Representative Hadley Luddy
Alisa Magnotta
Jonathan Butler
Kevin Galligan
Michael Mecenas
Laura Silber
Senator Julian Cyr
Kristy Senatori
Tom Matuszko 
Cameron Volastro
Marian Rose
Representative Kip Diggs
Paul Niedzwiecki
Sandra Milano
	Members Not Present
Arielle Faria
Sen. Paul Mark
Brian Horan
Nitin Mhatre 
John Lewis
Jane Ralph

	EOHLC Staff
Matthew Walsh
Philip Dearing
Will MacArthur
Chris Kluchman
	Others Present



Call to Order 
Secretary Augustus welcomed the group and called the meeting to order and stipulated for the purposes of the open meeting law that everyone is participating virtually. James Anthony noted a typo in the chat, Kevin Galligan moved approval as amended, and James Anthony seconded. The roll call vote was unanimous, with an abstention from Tom Matuszko. Secretary Augustus provided an overview of topics for the agenda and turned the meeting over to Phil Dearing to provide an overview of public comments received.
Public comment summary
Phil Dearing provided an overview of comments received from the public, noting that there were over 50 substantive comments ranging from technical tweaks to high-level perspectives. Staff reviewed all comments and made changes where possible, noting that many were limited by the scope of the enabling statute. Dearing further summarized four specific themes. First, comments focused on expanding the tools available to seasonal communities, and HLC is working to broaden regulatory language. Second, there was substantial confusion about the overlap between Tiny House and ADU regulations, and HLC is seeking to clarify this confusion by specifying that Tiny Houses are principal dwellings. Further detailed questions will be addressed in FAQ documents or other technical support resources.
Peter Lombardi asked whether the tiny home regulations would impact existing allowable tiny home uses. Matt Walsh clarified that it is a minimum requirement that Tiny Homes be allowed if they are year-round housing, but this does not preclude municipalities from allowing other Tiny Houses.
Dearing noted complexities in the undersized lot approach, and that HLC’s proposed approach is to require that attainable housing be allowed as-of-right for existing lots and allow it to be considered via special permit for existing lots. Dearing further clarified the lot size and setback parameters.
Senator Cyr returned to the topic of Tiny Homes and specified that they are only required to be allowed if they are year-round housing units. On the undersized lot topic, Senator Cyr expressed concern about requiring a special permit process for newly created lots, noting that the statutory intent is to unlock lots that are otherwise unusable for use as year-round housing.
Peter Lombardi noted that he asked his planning team to consider Slide 6 and asked how the 15 feet of setbacks and 20 feet of frontage requirements were determined. Dearing said this was based on a review of existing standards and offered to conduct further research. 
Megan Trudel asked for clarification that the existing lots are vacant lots and not lots with existing structures. Nantucket has had a successful covenant approach, producing more than 100 deed-restricted affordable homes, and other communities may benefit from something similar. Laura Silber noted that towns on Martha’s Vineyard are seeking to replicate the success of the Nantucket covenant program. She noted that if the statute doesn’t preclude an AMI restriction, that is a proven approach to creating new units affordable in perpetuity.
Seasonal Communities Additional Designations
Dearing shared that HLC’s Data and Research team and policy team, that HLC has developed a proposed set of designations using the two metrics mentioned in statute that are specifically housing-related (those around short-term rentals and seasonal housing). This approach would add 18 additional municipalities, and HLC would also consider applications from other municipalities who wish to make the case that they meet the goals of the statute and program. The Secretary reiterated HLC’s commitment to expanding the tools available to more communities.
Senator Cyr expressed support for the approach and asked two questions: first, what is the notification timeline, and second, has HLC considered providing a briefing or other materials for the communities that would be newly eligible that are not on the Islands or Outer Cape and may be less aware of the available tools. Secretary Augustus shared that he visited the Berkshires yesterday with legislative partners and heard that some Berkshire communities may be awaiting the final regulations before accepting the designation, and that he agrees there is a strong opportunity for a webinar or other resources.
Kevin Galligan expressed enthusiasm for the approach and said that when all communities work together they are stronger. He encouraged HLC to make it very clear how HLC is defining each of these metrics and to share data sources.
Secretary Augustus shared that the notification timeline would be in December. 
Representative Diggs said that this approach makes sense, and that while he has filed a bill, getting it done beforehand is preferable.
Peter Lombardi asked why seasonal employment ratio had been excluded after there was consensus to include it from the spring working group. Secretary Augustus noted that the use of the seasonal employment ratio produced anomalies that were not seasonal on other metrics.
Tom Matuszko similarly expressed enthusiasm for the updated list.
Seasonal Communities Report
Matt Walsh provided an overview of technical fixes for the Seasonal Communities report. First, statute did not exempt year-round housing trusts from 30B for intra-municipal transfers, and for taxation, and the report recommends doing so. Second, the statute did not address restrictions on perpetuities for deed restrictions, but Walsh clarified that specified-term restrictions can exceed 30 years. Third, the report recommends a statute change to allow accepting the designation by simple majority and require a two-thirds majority to withdraw in order to promote stability of the designation.
Walsh further noted that several larger changes contemplated in the report would require additional legislation. First, it was proposed to expand employment-specific housing eligibility, in order to expand to other essential workers not covered under existing statute. Second there is a proposal to enable municipalities to enact transfer fees as a local option.
Walsh noted several recommendations pursuable through administrative action, including building model bylaws and model deed-restrictions. Walsh thanked members of the working group who participated in forming the recommendations and requested additional feedback, with an emphasis on written feedback.
Rep. Luddy lauded the report for focusing on the needs of additional employee groups.
Senator Cyr recommended that the report reflect the full extent of local actions to support transfer fees, including 12 home rule petitions and 1 resolution from communities in the Cape and Islands District, and all six towns on Martha’s Vineyard. Peter Lombardi noted it may be more germane to the Commission’s charge to specifically recommend adding transfer fee local options for seasonal communities, and also asked for clarification on the 30B exemption provision, which he will further detail in a follow-up email. Senator Cyr noted that most requesters have been seasonal communities, along with some larger cities such as Boston, Cambridge, and Somerville.
Upcoming Notice of Funding Availability
Secretary Augustus noted that he valued speed and flexibility in putting the NOFA out so that communities that have accepted the designation can quickly move forward. The communities that have already accepted will be eligible in FY26, and additional municipalities may see the successes of these communities in FY27 as they weigh whether or not to accept the designation.
Kevin Galligan was enthusiastic about the approach, and sought clarification on what actions a municipal planner may need to take to solicit the funds. Chris Kluchman specified that a NOFA must be published under procurement rules, and then there will be a brief application to collect, for example, contact information.
Peter Lombardi asked whether the NOFA will be published before spring town meeting, as many communities do not have fall town meetings. He further noted that next year will be the same size of pie for a much larger group of communities, and that communities that have not yet accepted will have a smaller pie. Secretary Augustus noted that this is accurate, but that this doesn’t preclude adjustments to the CIP in the future as more communities join and if we see that the program is working well. Kluchman noted that the NOFA will be released shortly, likely in early December. Peter Lombardi made a follow-up comment on allowing the funds to be used to produce municipal workforce housing, and Secretary Augustus noted that HLC would investigate this issue.
Laura Silber requested that Chris Kluchman copy the RPAs on outreach to the towns.
Next Steps and Adjournment
Phil Dearing provided an overview of next steps, including for the council to provide feedback for the year-end report recommendations, stay tuned for the notice of funding availability, and plans to reconvene in early 2026. Secretary Augustus thanked the Commission and staff and entertained a motion to adjourn from James Anthony, seconded by Megan Trudel. The motion carried unanimously at 10:27am.
